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Independent Aucitors Report

To the Members of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of SAMH| JV Business Hotels Private Limited (the "Company™)
which comprise the batance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprshensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Audifor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of fndia
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Going concern

See Note 41 to the financial statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

The financial statements of the Company have | Our audit procedures included:
been prepared on a going concern basis.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

The Company has a negative net worth of INR
558.64 million and has incurred a net loss of
INR 893.15 million during the year ended 31
March 2023. As at 31 March 2023, the
Company's current liabilities exceed its current
assets by INR 575.82 million. Further, the
Company has contractual cash outflows of INR
770.63 million (excluding future contractual
interest payments) due within 12 month of the
balance sheet date.

The Company has prepared budgels / cash
flow forecasts, which involve judgements and
estimation around the sources of funds to meet
the financial obligations and cash flow
requirements.

Based on the projected future cash flows, the
Company expects to meet its future cash flow
requirements from:

* Expected increase in cash flow from
operations.

*  Availability of unrestricted cash and bank
balances and undrawn credit facilities.

* Financial and operationai support by
SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company}.

in view of the above, the management and the
Board of Directors believe that the Company
will be able to meet all its contractual
obiigations and liabilities as and when they fall
due in near future.

Considering the subjectivity involved in the
assessment performed by the management
and board of directors of the Company, we
have identified the assessment of going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

* Evalvated the reasonableness of the

* Enquires with the management and those
charged with governance regarding the
Company's ability to meet their obligations for
the next 12 months.

*  Assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the cash flow forecasis for
the next 12 months.

* Compared the forecasted statement of profit and
loss and cash flows with the Company's
business plans approved by the board of
directors of the Holding Company.

assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate etc. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

* Assessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

* Assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

Impairment assessment of Property Plant

and Equipment

See Note 47 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying value of
Property Plant and Equipment amounts to INR

Our audit procedures included:
* Obtained an understanding of the Company's
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

2,249.98 million.

The Company pericdically assesses whether
there is any indication that such Property Plant
and Equipment at cash generating unit (CGU)
level may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of these assets and if the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount. That reduction is recorded as
impairment loss.

To assess the recoverability of the CGU,
management is required to make significant
estimates and assumptions related to forecast
of future revenue, operating margins, exit
muttiple and selection of the discount rates.
The Company used the discounted cash flow
approach to determine the recoverable value of
the CGU. These assumptions are of particular
importance due to the extent of judgment
involved, thus changes in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable value of the CGU.

Considering the inherent uncerainty,
rnmplevity - and  judgement  inualved,
impairment assessment of the above-
mentioned assets has been considered as a
key audit matter.

process for projecting the future cash flows for
determining the recoverable amount of CGU,

* Tested the appropriateness of management's
basis to identify relevant CGUs for which
impairment testing is performed.

* Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key corntrols over the
impairment assessment process.

*  Evaluated the key market related assumptions
such as discount rate and exit multiple.

* Agssessed the reliability of cash flow forecasts
through a retrospective review of actual
performance in comparison to budgets.

* Evaluated the reasonableness of the
assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts
which includes occupancy rate, average room
rate. To consider forecasting risk we also
performed sensitivity analysis over these
assumptions.

*  Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures
made in the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

See Note 2.11 to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Company is principally engaged as a hotel
owner. lts revenue comprises hotel revenue
(including room revenue, food and beverage
revenue and recreation and other services
revenue).

The accounting policies for different revenue
streams are set out in Note 2.11 to the financial

statements.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the

Ouwr audit procedures included:

* Tested the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies and its compliance with the
relevant accounting standard.

*  Tested design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the
revenue recognition process.

* Performed substantive testing (including year-
end cut off testing) by selecting samples of

revenue transactions recorded during the year.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

Company and there is risk of overstatement of
revenue due to fraud resulting from pressure to
achieve targets and earnings expectations.

Considering the above, we have identified

For such samples, verified the underlying
documents such as invoices, receipts etc.

Tested the adequacy of disclosures relating to
the revenue recognition in the financial
statements.

revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

Other Information

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
iregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is aiso responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

b
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concarn
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability fo continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty

_exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We alsn pravide thnse charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thase matiers that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless taw or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detenmine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the back-up of certain softwares
{ applications which form part of the ‘books of account and other relevant books and papers in
electronic mode’ has not been kept on the servers physically located in India. Further, in respect
of certain softwares / applications, we are unable to comment on whether the back-up of the

boocks of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode has been kept on
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

servers physically located in India on a daily basis due to lack of availability of sufficient
information/ evidence.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph in “Annexure B” with respect
to adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 18 Aprit 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A.b. above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 44(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 2

(i} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 44(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, fend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties {"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

8.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (i} and (i} above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
Page 6 of 16
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

f.  As proviso to rufe 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 Aprit 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon

by us.
ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Q[;\l«\ul Na«;m,

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAl UDIN:23508605BGZYIF9758
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i} (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (p)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in period of three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment
were physically verified during the year ended 31 March 2021. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company. However, original title deeds are under lien
with lender. Therefore, we could not verify those title deeds and have not received independent
confirmation from the lender,

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@)  The inventory has baen physically verified by the management duting the year. In cur gpinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

(b)  According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
As informed to us and as per the terms of loan agreement of such limits, there are no
requirements on the Company to submit quarterly returns or statements with such bank.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. The Company
has provided security to companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information
is as below. The Company has not provided any security to limited liability partnership or any
other parties during the year.

(a) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided security to companies as below: QN
7
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

®

()

Particulars Security
{INR million)

Aggregate amount during the year
Fellow subsidiaries

— Barque Hotels Private Limited bkl
— Argon Hotels Private Limited 1,338.00
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Fellow subsidiaries

3,152.00

— Barque Hotels Private Limited
— Argon Hotels Private Limited 1,338.00

(Represents the limits santioned by bank and financial
institutions to fellow subsidiaries on account of the security
given by the Company)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the securities given during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated except for the interast free loan of INR
1.055.70 million [nominal amount] as at 31 March 2023 given to SAMHI Hotels Limited (holding
company), which is repayable after 31 December 2030 as per mutual consent of the Company
and SAMHI Hotels Limited. As informed to us, no repayment of loans and payment of interest
was due in the current year. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of
loan to any party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans fo any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or pericd of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given {o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"). In respsct of
security provided by the Company, the provisions of Section 185 of the Act have been complied
with. The Company has complied with Section 186(1) of the Act. According to the information
and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section (1) of the
Section 186) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company since the Company

Page 9 of 16
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 {Continued)

V)

{vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

is engaged in the business of providing infrastructural facilities.

The Company has not accepted any depasits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicabie.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Value Added Tax
and Sales tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinian amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Iinsurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays
in a few cases of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance and
Income-Tax.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable, except as mentioned below:

Name of the Nature of the Amount Period to Due Date of
statute dues (INR million} | which the date payment

amount
relates

The Provident 0.29 March 2019 | 15 April | Nof yet paid

Employees’ Fund {Additional 2019

Provident liability due to

Funds Supreme Court

And Judgement)

Miscellaneous

Provisions Act,

1952

Central Goods | Interest liability | 0.67 April 2021 - | # Not yet paid

and Services | on Goods and March 2022

Tax Act, 2017 | Services Tax

and State

Goods and

Services Tax

Act, 2017

# These amounts have fallen due at various points of time during the previous year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not

been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:;
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023 (Continued)
Name of Nature of the Amount {INR | Period to which | Forum where
the statute | dues million) the amount dispute is

relates (FY) pending
Finance Act, | Excess availment 89.30 2014-15to 2017- | Commissioner
1994 of CENVAT credit 18 of Goods and
(Service tax) | and short payment Services Tax
of service tax (Appeals)
(wiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination

(ix) (a)

(b}

()

(d)

(e)

(f

x) (&)

(b}

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. During the current year, the
Company has refinanced its non-convertible debentures issued to Sarvara Investment Fund |
through borrowings obtained from Citibank, N.A. and Citicorp Finance (India) Limited.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or govemment authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we repart that during
the year, the Company has used funds raised on short ferm basis aggregating to INR 405.60
million for long term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or foint venture {as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint venture (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicabls.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blowar complaints received by

the Company during the year.
Page 11 of 16
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b}

{©)

(d)

(xvii)

{xviii)

{xix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable. '

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting

standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its

business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of ndia
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3({xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of INR 842.31 miliion in the current financial year and
INR 491.80 million in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 41 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2023. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2023
by INR 575.82 million.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeable future.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowfedge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company

Page 12 of 16
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

{xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx){a) and 3(xx)(b} of the Order are not applicable.

ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanls
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Qﬂlf\ud N&ﬂm,

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23508605BGZYIF9758
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)}(h) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of SAMHI Jv
Business Hotels Private Limited {“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, maintained adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note™) and
except for the possible effects of the material weakness described in “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section
of our report below, on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as of 31 March 2023,

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported below in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of 31 March 2023 financial statements of the Company,
and the material weakness do not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material
weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company's internal controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2023:

The Company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements in respect of General
Information Technology Controls (GITCs) and automated Information Technology (IT) Application
Controls over the Company’s Opera application software were not operating effectively as at 31 March
2023. This could potentially result in understatement / overstatement of revenue from operations.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statementis, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detecied on a timely basis.

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for estabiishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financiaf controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Continued)

and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the exient applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our qualified audit opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, ;

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controfs with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2023 (Continued)
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No..101248W/W-100022

an ol

Rahul Nayar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 508605
Date: 17 August 2023 ICAI UDIN:23508605BGZYIF9758
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN US510DL2ZHIPTC214129

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

{All amonnis in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at

As at

Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 224998 2,350.55
Intangible assets 4 - 1.07
Financial assets
Loans 5 1,460.09 1,317.88
Other financial asseis 6 4297 14.84
Income tax assets (net) 7 [1.03 7.29
Other non-current assets 9 262 0.45
Total non-current assets 3,766.69 3,692.08
Current assels
Inventories 10 510 455
Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 7471 41.25
Cash and cash equivalents i2 50.79 12427
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 13 - 292
Qther financial assets 14 5538 6.05
Other current assets 15 40.37 31.17
Total current assets 226.35 210.21
TOTAL ASSETS 3.993.04 3,902.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 1,247 .80 1,247 80
Other equity 17 {1,806.44) {856.19)
Total equity (558.64) 391.61
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 3.747.97 3,264.31
Trade payables 20
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small - 28.85
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 18 - 068
Provistons 21 1.54 0.86
Total nen- current labilities 3,74%.51 3,294.70
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 534 83 -
Trade payables 23
- total eutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.85 053
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 206.32 181.64
enterprises
Other financial liabilities 24 11.03 12.58
Qther current liabilities 25 3220 2043
Provisions 26 0.94 0.80
Total current liabilitles 802.17 215.98
Total liabilitles 4,551.68 3,510.68
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,993.04 3,902.29
The notes from Note | to Mote 47 form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
ICAT Firm Registration No.; 101 248W/W-100022 M
Eﬂ hw I\hﬂ}m, Aot
Rahul Nayar Tagpyn Chakravarty Anjs
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No.: 538605 DIN: 06813081 DIN: 0853929] Membership No ; A35561
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurigram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date; 17 August 2023

Date: 17 August 2023

Date: 17 August 2023




SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited
CIN USS10IDL2011PTC214129
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(AH amourts int Rupees milfions, unless otherwise stafed) For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 27 1,202.40 283.98
Other income 28 208.13 101.74
Total income 1,500.53 385.72
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 29 76.89 32.04
Enployee benefits expense 30 104.56 62.76
Qther expenses 33A 520.23 247.99
701.68 342.79
Earnings before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation and tax 798.85 42.93
Finance costs 31 1,584.70 520.33
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32 107.31 106.25
1,692.01 626,58
Loss before tax (893.16) (583.65)
Tax expense ]

Current tax - -
Deferred tax > =
Loss for the year (893.16) (583.65)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 30 0.01 {0.19)
- Income tax relating to items mentioned above - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax 0.01 {0.19)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (893.15) (583.84)
Earnings/(losses) per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) 33B

Basic [INR] (7.16) (4.68)
Diluted [INR] {1.16) {4.68)
The notes from Note 1 to Note 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accoumtants
ICA] Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

Qﬁlrwd Nwl o

Rahul Nayar

Pariner Director
Membership No.: 508605 DIN: 06813081
Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 17 August 2023 Date: 17 August 2023

SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

/

Tagya Chakravarty
Director
DIN: (18539291

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

5
‘- =
Afaha Kumari

Company Secretary
Membership No.: A35561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023




SAMH] JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL201IPTC214129

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amovrts in Rupees mifflions, uniess othenwise stated)

A.  Cash flows from operating activities

Lass before tax

Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Provisions/liabilities no longer required written back
Loss allowance for rrade receivables
Finance costs
[nterest income
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation {net)
Net gain on fair valuation of equity component of convertible PIK obligation
Gain on modification of fnancial liabilities
Government grani writien off

Operating profit/{loss) before movement in assets and liabilities
{Increass)/decrease m inventories
Increase in trade receivables
(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets
Increase in other assets
[ncrease in trade payables
Increases(decrease} in other liabilities
Increase in provisions
Decrease in cther fGinancial liabilitias

Cash generated from/{used in} operations
Income taxes (paid) / refinded - net

Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities

B. Cash Mows lvom investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Loan given to holding company
Repayment of loan from holding company
Eank deposits matured
Bank deposits made
Interest received
Met cash generated from/(used in) investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds from corrent borowings (net of repayment)
Advance received from holding company
Advance repaid to holding company
Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing acfivities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Notes to Statement of Cash Flows

i. Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- ON CUrTER| accounts

For the year ended Far the year ended
3t March 2023 31 March 2022

(893.16) {583.65)

[07.31 106.25

{(5.73) s

4 80 014

1,584.70 52033
(234.32) (771.71)
0.64 2,18
(57.10} (14.40

- 9.37)

- 1.46
507.14 84.77)

{0.55) 0.21
(38.26) {18.88)
0.64 (2.48)
(9.12) (17.16)
6.49 93.90
11.77 (53.93}
0.83 0.3
{4.97) (1.07)
473.97 (55.31)
(3.49) 264
470.51 (56.17)
(7.92) {0.59)
- (903.54)
- 6.50
234062 172.50
(2.416.30) (172.50)
9229 0.66
8.75 (896.97)
391050 431550
{4,100.00) (2,543.73)
368.44 -

- £50.00
- (848.50)
(731.63) (106.87)
(352.74) 1,066.40
{73.45) 113.26

124.27 11.01
50.79 124,27

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

028 .63
50.51 123.64
50.7% 124.27




SAMMI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN U55101DL201IPTC214129

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in Rupees mitlions, uniess otherwise stated)

ii. Movement in borrowings (including interest accrued)

Opening Balance

Changes from financing cash Mows

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of [ong term borrowings

Procesds from current borrowings (net of repayment)
Finance cost paid

Other non cash changes
Finance costs
Equity component of convertible -F1K obligation

Closing Balance

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

326431 2,558.26

"3,910.50 4315.50
(4,100.00) (2,543.73)

368.44 -

(731.68) (706.87)

1,57841 51885
. (87770}

4,239.98 3,264.31

iti.  The Cash flows from operating activities section of Statement of Cash Flows lias been prepared in accordance with the Indicect Method® as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows".

The notes from Note 1 to Note 47 form an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even date artached

For BSR& Co, LLP
Chartered Accoumants
[C Al Finn Registration No.: LO1248WAV-100022

[Zode ijon, !

Rahul Nayar Rajaf Mehra
Parmer Direcior
Membership No.: 508605 DIN: 06313081

Divecior

Place; Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

7~

Tanya Chakravarty
DIN: 18539291

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023

o

ana Kumari

Company Secretary
Membership Mo.: A35561

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 August 2023
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

1.1 Corporate information

SAMHI ]V Business Hotels Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The
Company was incorporated in India on 15 February 2011 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act

and is limited by shares.

The Company is a hotel development and investment company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has two hotels under it (Courtyard by Marriott, Bangalore and Fairfield by Marriott,
Bangalore) which are operational.

1.2 Basis of preparation

A.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 17 August 2023,

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Ttems Measurement Basis
Financial assets and liabilities i.e., Fair Value
derivative instruments
Equity component of convertible PIK Fair Value
obligation

Also, refer Note 41 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

i)

the assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may require material adjustment to the carrying
value of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The following are the significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements:
Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likeiihood and magnitude of an cutflow of resources.

Useful lives and impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are based on estimates and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows,
obsolescence, demand, competition and known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful
lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each

reporting date.

iii) Employee benefit obligations

v)

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rato and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. Alse, refer Note 37 for further disclosures.

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

.




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

vi)

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Going Concern assumption

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Company has
a negative net worth of INR 558.64 million and has incurred a net loss of INR 893.15 million during the
year ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets
by INR 575.82 million. Further, the Company has contractual cash outflows of INR 770.63 million
(excluding future contractual interest payments) due within 12 month of the balance sheet date.

The Company has prepared budgets / cash flow forecasts, which involve judgements and estimation around
the sources of funds to meet the financial obligations and cash flow requirements. Also, refer Note 41.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the [iability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. Terms of a iiability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All
other assets/ liabilities are ¢lassified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (if any) are classified

as non-current assets and liabilities.
Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months
for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the Holding

Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used

in the valuation techniques as follows:
* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
» Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 37.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.
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Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition,
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different vseful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or

loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the
management based on technical estimates). The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. In case of a revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life.

Depreciation on addition/ (disposals} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date on which the
asset is ready for use/ (disposed off).

The management estimate of the useful life of various categories of assets is as follows:

Asset Category* Useful Life Useful life as per Schedule
(Years) II to the Companies Act,
2013
(Years)

Building 15-60 60
Computers and accessories 3-6 3-6
Plant and machinery 5-25 15
Furniture and fixtures 5-8 10
Vehicles 8 8

Office equipment 5-10 5

* For the above class of assets, the management based on internal technical evaluation, has determined that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.
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Hence, the useful lives of few assets included in the above asset categories are different from the useful
lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I to the Companies Act 2013.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant and equipment’s are
reviewed by management at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company had elected to use the fair value of all the items of property, plant and equipment on the date
of transition i.e., 1 April 2015, and designate the same as deemed cost. Fair value was determined by
obtaining an external third-party valuation, a level 3 valuation technique.

Intangible assefs

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial recognition,
an intangibie asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if

any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits from the specific
asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Intangible assets of the Company represents computer software and are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life (at present three years). The amortization period and the amortization
method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly
different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial assets (except trade receivable without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of a
financial instrument on initial recognition is generally its transaction price (that is, the fair value of the
consideration given or received). However, if there is a difference between the transaction price and the fair
value of financial instruments whose fair value is based on a quoted price in an active market or a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the Company recognizes the difference as a gain or
loss at inception (‘day 1 gain or loss’). In all other cases, the entire day 1 gain or loss is deferred and
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the life of the transaction until the transaction matures
or is closed out. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition ot issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost
- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and
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— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would

otherwise arise.
Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that

business model) and how those risks are managed; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including vartable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;
- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).
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Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets
at amortised cost

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair valve. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FvOCI a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assels

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not

retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not

derecognized.
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iv.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

v. Interest free loans

The Company has provided interest free loan to its holding company. Such interest free loans are measured
at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash flows and
discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans. The
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans has been debited to other equity in
the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs and interest
income is recognised using effective interest rate method.

vi, Non-convertibie debentures

Vil

The Company has issued non-convertible debentures (NCDs) which have been treated as financial liability
in books and carried at amortised cost.

Further, the Company has identified the redemption right as equity component. As the risks associated
with the underlying variable are not closely related to the host instrument, the equity component has been
separately accounted for from the NCDs in other equity. The equity component has been fair valued
through profit or loss at each balance sheet date.

Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.
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If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

4) Impairment

A. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the

financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the

following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
cxpected lifc of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initiai
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed.
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCL.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
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value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risks specific to the asset (or cash generating unit (CGU)).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of

CGUSs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise stock of food and beverages is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories comprises ali costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory
to their present location and condition. In determining the cost, first in first out (*FIFO") method is used.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs to make the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme

The grant or subsidy received to compensate the import cost of assets, subject to an export obligation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ratio of fulfilment of associated export obligations.

Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS)

The scheme entitles the Company to receive SEIS licenses basis the annual earnings in foreign currency.
These licenses can be utilised by the Company or sold in the market. The grant is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis at realizable value.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at

each reporting date.
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

10) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
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payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future

payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valvation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final

obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations — Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

11) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to a customer i.e., on transfer of control of the
goods or service to the customer. Revenue is net of indirect taxes and discounts.

Contract asset represents the Company’s right to consideration in exchange for services that the Company
has transferred to a customer when that right is conditioned on something other than the passage of time.

When there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required to do invoicing, the
same is presented as Unbilled revenue,




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

A contract liability is recognized if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services and the Company is under an
obligation to provide only the goods or services under the contract. Contract liabilities are recognized as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.¢., transfers control of the related goods or

services to the customer).

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue, sale of food and beverages and recreation services

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
comprises room revenue, sale of food and beverages, recreation and other services relating to hotel
operations. Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the services and sale of food and beverages which is
recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and other services have been provided

as per the contract with the customer.

12) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amoitised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

13) Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on

a net basis.




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

14) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceabie rightto set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for :
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not

a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the

transaction;
- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.
Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be

realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets ona net basis or such tax assets and

liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Rupees millions, unless otherwise stated)

15) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM).

Identification of segment

In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is 2 component of the Company that engages
in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

16) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.

17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

18) Measurement of earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company measures
EBITDA on the face of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does
not include finance costs, depreciation and amortisation expense and tax expense.

19) Exceptional items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary
activities of the Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the
Company. Such income or expense is classified as an exceptional item and accordingly, disclosed in the

financial statements.
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SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2011PTC214129

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amonnrs in Rupees mitlions, unless othenvise stated)

5  Non-current financial assets - Loans
Unsecired, considered good)

Loan to related party
Loan 1o holding company

Interest free loan

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
146009 1.317.88
1,460.09 1,317.88

As on 31 March 2023, the Company has provided interest free loan to holding company amounting to TNR 431.62 {31 March 2022 - [NR 384.72) which is repayable at any date after 31 December 2030 &s per
mutual consent of the Company and the holding company The loan is provided in Indian Rupees. These loans were advanced to holding company for meeting project expenses and business purpose

requirsments

Interest bearing loan

As on 31 March 2023, the Company has peovided loan to holding company amounting to TNR 1,028 47 {31 March 2022 - INR 933.16) including accrued interest of INR 124.93 (31 March 2022 - [NR 29 62)
which is repayable after 3 years from the date of first disbursement i.e. 21 January 2022 The loan is piven at interest rate of 19 50% p.a.. The loan is provided in Indian Rupees, These loans were advanced to

q

holding company for meeling project expenses and b

purpose

Loans amd advances to specified person

As at 31 March 2023

% to total loan &

As at 31 March 2022

% to total loan & advances

Namé¢ of Borrower
advances
SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding Company) 1.460.09 100% 1,317.88 100%

6  Now-current financial azsets - Others Asm As at
Unsecured, considered gond) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Bank deposits {due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)*# 3699 34
Security deposits 598 395

42,97 14.34
* Includes inlerest acerued on bank deposits amounting to MR 0.71 {31 March 2022 - [NR.0.54)
# Includes bank dep under lien ing to INE. 3616 {31 March 2022 - (NR. £.16}
7 Imcome tax assets {net} As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tax deducted at source 11.03 729
11403 1'%
8  Income tax For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A The major components of income tax expense/{income) are
Recogniged in profit or logs
Current tax - .
Deferred 1ax - =
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Recognised in Qther comprehensive income
Income tax on other comprehensive income 2 =
and the ing profit multiplied by Company's d tic tax rafe)

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate {1ax exp

Loss before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate

Tax effect of:

Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences
Mon-deductible expenses

Non-convertible debentures (P1K obligation recognised through equity}

Qthers
Effective tax rate

For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 Mavch 2022

% Amount % Amouni
(893.16) (583 65)
2517 224.79) 2517 {146.89)
(57.29) 511,66 1910 (58.93)
(0.04) nig (033) 131
2940 (262.58) (3785 22092
276 {24 68) 291 {17.01)




SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN US5101DL2OT1PTC214129

Mates to the fimancial statesients for the year ended 31 March 2023
(AN amonis in Rupees miltions, wnless otherwise stated)

C. Deferred iax assets/liabilities As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 72574 413.58
Loss allowance for trade receivables 1.55 034
Loan to holding company 15708 166.8%
Dizallowance under Section 43B of the Income tax Act, 1961 (for accried interest) - 37.8¢
Pravision for employee benefits 1.39 3355
235,76 624.24
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 16138 161.70
Men convertible debentures - 24823
Others 040 199
161.78 411,92
723.98 21232

Deferred tax assets {net)

Deferred 1ax assets/{liabilities) recogmised®

* As at year end, the Company has significant unabsorbed depreciarion and camy forward business losses as per Income-tax Act, 1951, In view of absance of reasonable certainty of sufficient fulure L1axable
profits, deferted tax assets has been recognized to the sxtent of deferred tax liabilities only.

D, Movement in temporary differences

31 March 2023

Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
1 April 2022 differences generated 31 March 2023
Particulars but not recognised
during the year
(A} (B) (C=A+B)
Deferred iax assets
Unabsorbed b loss and dep ion 413.58 312.16 72574
Disallowance under Section 43B of the [ tax Act, 1961 (for accrued interest) 3789 (37.39) -
Loss all for trade vables 0.34 121 1.55
Loan to holding company 163.39 {11.81} 157.08
Provision for employee benefits 3.55 (2.16) 1.39
624.24 261.52 #85.76
Delerred tax liabilities
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assels {161.70) 0.33 (161.38)
MNon-convertible det (243 23) 24823 -
Others {1.99) 1.58 (040}
(411.92) 250.14 {161,78)
Net deferred tax asset 21232 511,66 T23.98)
31 March 2022
Balance as at Deferred tax on Balance as at
1 April 2021 differences gemerated 31 March 2022
Particulars but not recogmised
during the year
(4) (B) {C=A+B}
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business loss and depreciation 11938 203 70 413,58
Disaliowance under Section 43B of the Income tax Aet. 1961 (for accrued interest} 12563 {87 74} 3789
Lass allowance for trade receivables 0.31 0.04 034
Loan 1o holding company 180.47 {11.58) 168.89
Pravision for employee benefi 362 {013 3.55
42095 194.2% 624.24
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equi and intangible assets (158 .70) {300 (161,70
MNan-convertible debentures - 1248.23) (248 23)
Others - (1.9%) {1.99)
{158.70% (253.22}) (411.92)
Met deferred tax asset 271.25 (58.93) 212.32
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Notes to the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amainis in Rupees milfions, unizss otherwize stoved)

E. Tax hosses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expicy date are as follows:

Business loss
Business loss
Business loss
Unabsorbed depreciation

Business loss
Business Joss
Unabsorbed depreciation

9  Other non-current assets
{Unsecnred, considered gnod)

Capital advances

Advances other than capital advances
Prepaid expenses

Asat
31 March 2023
Amomnt Expiry period
(FY)

23391 2028-29
1,07506 2029-30
1,036.16 2030-31

51820 Mever expire

As at
31 March 2022
Amount Expiry period
(FY}

253.91 2028-29

977.00 2029-30

41221 Mever expire

Asat Az at
31 March 2023 31 Marech 2022
225 =
037 0.45
2.62 0.45
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CIN US5101DL2011PTC2I4129

Notes 1o (ke financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amonnrs in Rupees millions, unless oshenrise siaved)

L}

Inventories As at As a1
(el at the lower of cose amd ref realisable vatue) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Food and beverages 510 455
10 4.55
Current linancial wssets - Trade receivables As at As at
{Unsecured) 3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade receivables
Lonsidered good 64,04 2685
-Credit impaired 1.49 1.36
Unbilled revenue *
-Considered good 15.33 14.40
3056 41.61
Less : Loss allowance: (6.15) (1.36)
4.1 41.2%
* Mel of advance from customers of INR. 4.24 (31 March 2022 - INR 3.98}
4) The Company’s #xpasure 1o credil and currency risks, and lass allowances relaied to trade receivables are disclosed in Mo 37
b} For receivables secured against borrowings, refer to Note 19 and Mote 22
Trade receivable ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023
Dutstanding for following periods from date of tr i
Particulars Unhilled Less ihamé | 6 monibs- [ More than 3
= -3 Total
Revenue LT H year 1-2years B adyenes years o
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered pood 15.33 40.7¢ 18 81 3le oo 118 79.37
i} Undisputed Trade recwivables — credit impaired - - - 0.62 019 068 1.42
|Tntal 1533 40,79 18.51 .41 0.26 .86 2036
As at 31 March 2022
0 ling far following periods from date of transaction
Particul; i =
ars Unbilled Less than 6 | 6 monibs - 1 1-2 years 2. 3years More than 3 Total
Revenwe monihz Year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 14,40 20.4] 461 081 - - 4125
(i} Undisputed Trade recervables — credil impaired - - .47 035 - 054 1.36
Toinl 14.40 21.41 5.08 118 - .54 42.61

The Company does nol have any disputed trade receivables as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
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MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Alf amounts in Rupees millions, unfess otherwise stated)

12 Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- BN Current accounts

13 Current financial assets - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Bank deposits {original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) *#

* Includes interest accrued on bank deposits amounting to INR Nil (31 March 2022 - INR ¢.60)
# Includes bank deposits under lien amounting to INR Nil {31 March 2022 - INR. 2.32)

14 Current financial assets - Qthers
(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits {due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date)
Security depasits
Other receivables*

* Refer Mote 36 for related party balances.

15 Other current asse(s
(Unsecured, considered good)

Staff advance

Advance to suppliers

Balance with statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses #

Other advances

# includes current portion of non-current prepaid expenses amounting to INR 0.15 (31 March 2022 - INR 1.13).

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
028 0.63
50.51 123.64
50.79 124.27
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 292
- 2.92
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Mairch 2022
50.00 -
261 287
2.37 318
55.38 6.05
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
014 0.04
208 0.60
3091 19.95
6.90 5,55
0.34 5.03
40.37 31.17
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Moles to the Mnancial stalements for (e year ended 30 March 2023
(AN omonnis in Rupees miffions, anfess aiberwise siafed)

16

Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each

Isswed, subseribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of [INR. 10 each

a) Reconciliation of the equity shaves surstanding ar the beginning and at 1he end of reperting yesr

Issued, sobseribed and fally paid up
At the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of tbe year

b) Righs, prefe and ieli hed to equity shares

As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shaves Amvunt Number of shares Amvownt
130,000,000 1,300 00 130, 00, 000 1,300,00
130,000,000 1300.00 130,000,000 1,300.00
124,730,000 1,247.80 124,780,000 1,247.80
124,780,000 1,247.80 124,780,000 1.247.80
Fov 1he year ended Far ibe year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
MNumber of shares Amamni Namber of shares Amount
124,789,000 1,247 80 124, 780,004 1,247 80
124,780,000 1,247.80 124,780,000 1.247.80

The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled 1o one vote per share. The equity shares are entilled to receive dividend as and when declared, In the

Transferred to relained eamings
Balance at the end of the year

event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares wall be enhitled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after disirbunon of il pref | The d will be in prop 1a the number of equity
sharas held by the shareholders
¢) Shares bebd by halding/ulsi halding pamy and/ or (keir subsidiaries/ associates
As at As at
Name of sharcholder 31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amouni
Equity shares of INR 10 each
SAMH! Hotels Limited (Holding Company)*® 124,780,000 1,247 80 124,780,000 1,247 80
d) Detsils of sharehalders helding more than 5% equity shares
At at As al
Name of sharchobder 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares % of bolding Nwmber of shares % of helding
Equity shares of INR 10 each
SAMH] Hosels Limited, Holding Comparny * 124,780,000 1600s 124,730,000 10025
*1 equity share is held by Mr. Gyana Das 25 3 nomines shareholder
€) Mo shares have been allotied without payment of cash or by way of bonus shares or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date
fy Details of promaters shaveholding as ar year end
As at 31 March 2023
No. of shares aft (e . ) -
S Ne. Promater beginnimg of the Change derimg the No. of shaves at the end of the w, of Tatal Shares a change during (he
vear year year year
1 SAMHI Howels Limited {Holding Company) 124,780,000 - 124, 7RO,000 100% -
As at 31 March 2022
Ne. of shares at ihe . .
§ No. Promwoter beginming of the Change during the Ne. of shares at the end of the o4 of Total Shares % change during 1he
year year year year
1 SAMHI Hotels Limited {Holding Company) 124,780,000 124,730,000 100% E
Qiler equily Asal As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capilal reserve 3244 3244
Retained saminus (2,034 54} (1,14)1.39)
G ional interest comp of boan 10 holding compamy (61054} (610.54)
Equity componenl of convertible PLK obligation 806,20 £63.30
(1,806.44) {856.19)
a) Redaimed earnings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance ot the beginming of the yeor (1,141.3%) (557.535)
Loss for the year (893 16) {583.65)
Transfer from other comprehensive income 0oL {0.19)
Balance at the end of the year 12,034.54) {1,041.3%)
Retained eamings répresent the amount of accumulaled loszes of the Company
b) C ienal interest ¢ t of loan te holding corapany As at As ar
1 March 2023 3t March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year {610.54) {610.54)
Balance at the end of the year {610.54) (610.54)
This rep the ional interas| comy of the jnterest frae loans given to SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Holdmg Company.
t] Other comprebensive income As st As ar
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the begimming of the year - .
Remeasurements of defined benefit Tabilinv/asset inet of rmx) 9 0.0l {019
. {000y al19




SAMHI JV Busimess Heiels Private Limied
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Notes io the financial starements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amornts in Rupees millions, ufess otwennse siaied)

d) Capital reserve
Balance al the beginning of the year

Additions made during the year
Balance at the end of ihe year

This reprasents capital reserve recognised on gain on early repayment of loan by holding company

) Equity comp of ible PTK abligati

Balance at the beginning of the year

Inatial recognition of equily componenl of converfible PIK obhgation
Net pain on fair valuation of equity comp af ible PIE obii

Balance al the end of the vear

Thiz represents the fair valve of convertible PIK obligation of non-convertile debentures issued during the previous year. During the current year, the Holding P

8,202,419 equity shares of SAMHI Hotels Limited (Holding Company). Alsa, refer to Note 19,

Vafuatiy fistigrae nesed for o Jair valie
Specific valuation Iechnique used to value convertible PIK obligation include:
- the fair value for equity comp of ihle PIK obligation is calcul

Dratails of significant suobservable inputs for measierement of foir vaines

As at As 2t
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3z 28 30
- 4,14
3. 344
Asal As At
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
36330 =
. 477,70
(5710} {14.40)
906.20 36330
has setthed ible PIK obligation through issue of

d based on mome carlo method of valuztion of the instrument (Level 3)

|Significant smobservable inputs Inter-relatienship between significant wnohservable inputs and fair vahue
Equity eomponeny of convertibbe PIK sblgation {Other equiry) Agal As al Remarks

31 March 2613 31 March 2022
|Enterprise value of SAMHI Hotels Limiled tholding company} ("EV™) - 14,197.81 | The estimated fair value would increase {decrease) if the EV was higher (lower)
Rusk free rate NA 4.61%| The estimated fair value would decrense (increase) if the nisk free rate was higher (lower)
Yolatility rate NA 92 20%% | The estimared fair value would i if if' the volatiliry rate was higher (lower}
Sensitivity analysis

ble PIK obligati I

For the fair value of equity comp of

Profit or (loss) / Equity, mel of 1ax

31 March 2022 lacrease Decrease

Business valus (5% ] 40.10) 40,00

Risk free rate {19 movement) [i%:1] (D90}
(0700 [7e1]

Volatiliry rate { 1% movement}

ible changes at the repoming dare due to one of the sigmificant unohservable inpuls, holding other inputs constant, would have fallowing effects:
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(Al amounts in Rupees millfions, nnless othenvise stated)

18 Non current financial liabilities - Others As at Asg at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payable for capital assets B 068
S 0.68
19 Non-carrent fimancial liabilities - Borrowings As af As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) From bank {secured)
Term loan 270825 -
b} From financial institafien {secured)
Term loan 1,209.94 -
¢} Non-convertible debentures (secured)
31 March 2023: Mil; 21 March 2022; 4,100, 19.50 % non-convertible debentures of TNR 1,000,000 each . 3,264.31
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 22} (163.04) -
Leszs: Interest acerued on borrowings (refer nole 24) {7.18} B
3.747.97 326431
A, Terms and conditions
(i} Loans from baok and fimancial institation
. Sanctioned Amoont Interest rate charged per anmum
Particulars {INR Millions) 31 March 2023 o Maren 2072 Repayment Terms Security details
CITIBANK, N.A 2,735.00 3 months T-bill - |The Ivan is repayable in  44|i) First exclusive morigage on the Assets of borrower and Assel of Co-
rate + Margin structured  quarterly  installments|Borrower (Bargue Hotels Private Limuted and Arpon Hotels Private
(3.75%) 1. slarting after 12 months from the|Limited), including martgage over leasehold nights for leased assers
10.63% first disbursement date ie 271} Hypothecation on the receivables and Bank accounts
February 2023, Wi) 99% of share pledge of the bomrowers shares and Non disposal
Fined mandatory payment - On orfundertzking on the balance un-pledged from Holding Company.
prior to 12 months from the first|iv) Corporate G of Holding Ci
dishursement date, INR 300,00 to be
repaid is pro-rata prep
of all the facilities from Cilibank,
N.A. and Citicorp Finance {India)
Limited ("CFIL"} (excluding cash
credit  and overdraft  facilities)
obtained by the Company and Co-
Bormrowers {Barque Hotels Privaie
Limited and Argon Hotels Private
Limited)
Citicorp Finance {India} 1,225.00 3 months T-bill - |The loan is repayable in 44|i) First exclusive morigage on the Assets of borrower and Asset of Co-
Limited (“CFIL") rate + dargin| structured  quartedy  instgllments|Borrower (Barque Hotels Private Lumited and Argon Hotels Private
(4.75%)ie starting after 12 months from the|Limited), including mortgnge over leasehold rights for leased assets
11.63% first  disbursement dale i+ 27|01} Hypothecalion on the receivables and Bank accounts
February 2023 i} 99% of share pledge of the bomrowers shares and Nen disposal
Fixed mandatory payment - On or|undertaking on the baiance un-pledged from Holding Company
prior to 12 menths from the first|iv) Corporate Guaraniee of Holding Company
disbursement dale, INR 300.00 to be
repaid towards pro-rata prepayment
of all the faciliies from Citibank,
MA. and Cilicorp Finance (India)
Limited ("CFIL") {#x¢luding cash
credit  and  overdraft  facilities)
btained by the Company and Co-
Borrowers {Barque Hotels Private
Limited and Argen Hotels Privaie
Limited)
Piramal Enterprises Limited 2,100.00 - |Primal Prime Lending|[The term loan is repayable in 48|Loans from Piramal Enterprises Limited (earlier known as PHL Finvest
(earlier known as PHL Rate (PPLR} Less[structured  quarterly  instalments| Private Limited) is secured by way of:
Finvest Private Limited) facility spread 1.¢, g from September 2021.[(3) First ranking pari passu charge, over propenty of Courtyard & Fairfield]
14,05% p.a |Accrued interest will be paid by the|by Marriott, Bangalore ("Bangalore Project™} [under entity SAMHI JV
end of the 60th month from the first| Business Hotels Private Limited)
disbursement date of loan (i) First ranking pari passu charge, over property of Sheraton, Hyderabad
Mo interest payment is required for|("Hyderabad Project*) [under entity SAMHI Hotels { Ahmedabad) Private
six months from  the  first|Limited]
disbursement date of|(in} First ranking pari passu charge, over Bangalore Project Receivables,
loan. Thereafter, inlerest to be puid|Current Acsount and Project Escrow Account
at a concessional rate of $% from the|(iv) First ranking pari passu charge, over Hyderabad Project receivables,
7th month to the 36th month, Interest| Current Account and Project Escrow Account
to be paid at PPLR less facility|(v) First cankimg pari passu charge by way of 100% Share Pledge of]
spread from 37th Month tll end of]fSAMHI JV Business Hotelz Private Limited
the tenure of the loan. (vi) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of the
The lomm has been repaid in full in|Promoter Escrow. Account
the year ended 31 March 2022 {wii) Non-disposal undertaking from promoter ("SAMHI Hotels Limited")
for [ 00% shares of SAMH] Holels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited
(viii) Second charge onall assets of SAMHI JV Business Hotels Private
Limited

S,
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{Alf amounts in Kupees millions, wnfess othenwise stated)

Interest rate charged per annum

Sanctiomed Amount .
Particalars (INR Millions} 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Repayment Terms Secuarity details
Pirnmal Enterprises Limiled 42300 - 13.00% | The term loan amount is repayable in|Loans from Piramal Enterprises Limited {earlier known as PHL Finvest

48 equal quarterly instalments after 1|Private Limited) is secured by way of:

(earlier kngwn as PHL
year of moratorium from date of first|(i) First ranking pani passu charge, over property of Courtyard & Fairfield

Finvest Private Limited)

disbursement i.¢ 4 March 2021, by Mamiokt, Bangalore {*Bangalore Project™) [under emity SAMHI JV|

The loan has been repaid in full in|Business Hotels Private Limited]

the year ended 3} March 2022 (ii} First ranking pari passu charge, over property of Sheraton, Hyderabad|
("Hyderabad Project”) [under entity SAMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Privare|
Limited]

(in) First ranking pari passu charge, over Bangalore Project Receivables,
Current Account and Project Escrow Account

(iv) First ranking pari passo charge, over Hyderabad Project receivables,
Current Account and Project Escrow Account

{v} First ranking pari passu charge by way of 100% Share Pledge o
SAMHI JY Business Hotels Private Limited

(vi) First ranking pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of the
Premoter Escrow Account

(i) Non-disposal undertaking from promoter ("SAMHI Hotels Limited")
for 100% shares of $AMHI Hotels (Ahmedabad) Private Limited

(wii1) Second charge on all assets of SAMHL JV Business Hotels Private)
Limited

(ii) Non-convertible debentures (NCDs)

1. On 19 January 2022, Debenture Trust Deed (*DTD') was executed between SAMHL IV Business Hotels Private Limited (*SAMHI 1), SAMHL Hotels Limited { holdlng company') and Vistra ITCL (India)
Limited (* Debenture Trustee’}. Basis aforesaid Debenture Trust Deed, during the financial year ended 31 March 2022, SAMHI JV has issued 4,100 unlisted, d ble, non-convertible debentures of
a face value of INR. 1,000,000 each, aggregating to INR 4,100 on a private placement basis to Sarvara Investment Fund [ on the terms and conditions set out in DTD

2 Thess non-convertible debentures are secured by following:
a) a first ranking morigage on all immovable assets of SAMHI IV, both present and future, including the SAMHUJV's propenties at Bengaluru

b} a first ranking charge on all the movable assets (current, non-current and movable fixed assets) of the SAMHI JV, both present and fisture, including but not Limited to:

i) movable propemes including plant and machinery, machine spares, tools and aceszsones, furniture, fixtures, vehicle and othar non-current assets;
i) the p d which includes government securities, fixed deposits in any scheduled commercial bank in India, which is not a lendet b the Group, liquid mutual fund debt schemes

i} mtangible assels,
iv) all current assets of SAMHI JV, including but not limited to the receivables of the SAMHI JV including cash in hand, invesiments classified as “held for trading”, raw materials, consumable stores and

spares, book debts, operating cash flow and stock in bade, and

v)all i and bank ts of SAMHI TV and monies lying therein
) a first ranking exclusive charge over all dghts and receivables of the Holding Comp which includes all receivable by the Holding Camy (whether as operational payments or otherwise} from
SAMHIIY

d} a first ranking exclusive pledge over the shares and securities constituting 100%% shareholding held by the Holding Company
&} the Corporate Guarantees provided by Bargue Hotels Private Limited and Paulmech Hospilality Private Limited in favour of debanture trustes
), ranking parf passu inter-se the SAMH] J¥ Debentures and the Barque Debentures,,

f} all encumbrances created of to be erealed 1o secure the Barque Hotels Private Limited Deb (B Deb.
other than the Promoter Guarantee issued by SAMHI Hotels Limited (Promoter) for securing the Barque Debentures

3. As per Debenture Trust Deed, retum on non-convertible debentures is sum of Cash PIK and Convertible PTE
(i} At all times during the tenure of non-convertible deb , the deb holder is entitled to 2 mini IRR. of not lesz tham 21,34% per annum (1.¢. 19 5% per armum compounded menthhy)

(1) Cash PIK is an amount Lhat would give the debenture holder a return equal to 14.50% p.a. compounded monthly during the term of debentures. Cash PIK obligation on non-convertible debentures i to be
serviced at 1.00% p.a. payable monthly for the first & monihs, ar 3.50% p.a. payable monthly from the commencement of Fth month until the expiry of 12 months and a1 14.50% p.a. payable monthly for bal
term of 3 years (to the extent applicable} and remaining obligation on redemption of debentures

(ni) Convertible PIK is portion of acerued interest on the non-convertible debentures that will be converted into equity shares of SAMH! Hotels Limited {Holding Company) in accordance with the SAMHI
shares allotment agreement dated 19 January 2022 between SAMHI IV, holding company and debenture trusies

(iv) During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, SAMHI IV paid debenture holder upfront interest of 3.00% of the nominal value of each non-conventible debentures issued as an additional interest

(v} Afver Jock-in-period for the non-convertible debentures of 12 months from the date of first disbursement i.e 21 January 2022, these debentures are redeemable within 4 vears at the option of SAMHL)V or
at the end of 4 years from date of first disbursement, Further, the nan-convertible debentures will be mandatorily redeemed within 30 days of occurrence of an 1PO event

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the non-convertible debentures have been redesmed, Accordingly, the cash PLE component has besn fully repaid and the Convertible PIK component has been converted
nlo 8,202,41% equity shares of Holdmg Company allotted to Sarvara Investment Fund | al 2 fair value of [NR 184.85 per equity share.

{iii) The Company did not have any inung defaults in the rep of Toans and inlerest. There have been no material loan covenant defaults and there has been no intimation from the bank/ financial

institution for recalling any loan facility,

(iv} For information about the Company's exposure Lo interest rate and Hquidity risks refer Mote 27

e
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20 Noo-current financial liabilities - Trade payables

Az at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) - =
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - 28.85
= 28,85
a) Refer Mote 39 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED).
b) The Company’s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Mot 37
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022
0 ding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particulars Accrued expenses | Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
WSME . - . - . -
Others - 18.43 10.20 022 - 28.85
Total - 15.43 10.20 0.22 - 28.35
The Company does not have any disputed dues which are payable as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,
21 Non current provisions As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Pravision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note 30) 039 049
Compensated absences (Refer Note 30) 1.15 037
1.54 .86
22 Current financial liabifities - Borrowings As at Ag at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash credir and overdraft facilites from bank (secured} * 371.79 -
Current maturities of long-term borrowinps (Refer Note 19) 163.04 -
534.83 -
*Includes intersst d ing ke [WNE 3.35 (31 March 2022 - INR Nil)
Cash credit and overdraft facilities from bank
Particulars Sanctioned Interest rate charged per Repayment Security details
Amount 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Terms
(INR Millionz)
CITIBANE, N.A. 40000 3 months T-bilt rats - |Repayable on  [i} First exclusive mortgage on the Assets of borrower and Asset of|

+ Margin (3.75%) i.e.
10.63%

Co- Bomower (Barque Hotels Private Limited and Argom Hotels
hold rights for leased

Private Limited), including gape over |
assets.

iv) Corporate Guarantee of Holding Company

i1y Hypothecation on the receivables and Benk accounts
W) 99% of share pledge of the borrowers shares and Non disposal
undertaking on the balance un-pledged from Helding Company.

23 Cuorrent financial Labilities - Trade payables As al As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables
- tofal suistanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 16.85 053
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 20632 181.64
223,17 182,17
a) Refer Note 39 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED}.
b Refer Note 34 for dues to related parties
¢) The Company’s exposure to conency and liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Mote 37,
‘Trade payables ageing schednle
As at 31 March 2023
Out ding for following periods from due date of transaction
Particulars Accrued expenses | Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Talal
L Eness
MSME SO SO\ - 16.85 - - ey 16.85
Cthers >/ NEA] 42.67 133.06 13.05 6.26 11.28 206.32
Total =] | el 42.67 149.91 13.05 6.26 11.28' 223.17
T 5 sullidrarm
= < aTunrain)
As at 31 March 2022 \‘;’,\ /“/ \ 4
&y Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction .~
Particulars ad Accrued expenses | Less than L year 1-2 years 2-3 years Muorg than 3 years f Total
MEME - 0.52 - - - 0.53
Others 23.59 112.25 023 4133 4.23 181.64
Total 23.59 11278 0.23 41.33 413 182.1

The Company does not have amy disputed dues which are payable as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
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24  Current financial liabilittes - Others

1 acerued on b ings (Refer Note 19)
Employee related payables
Security deposits received

25 Onher current liabilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable

26 Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer Note 30)
Compensated absences (refer Mote 30)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7.18 -
3.59 12.32
0.26 0,26
11.03 12,58
As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
5.69 0.0
26.51 10,42
32.20 20,43
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.15 0.25
0.7 0.55
0.94 0.80
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27 Fevenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of services
- R.com revenue 90139 200,19
- Food and beverage revenue 271.25 799
- Recreation and other services 29.76 .83
1,202.40 183.98

28

29

30

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from costomers for which revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is over/ services delivered.
Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms / restaurantf
banquets. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage / provision of banquet services. Excess of revenue over invoicing is recorded
as unbilled revenue. Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is same as the contracted price.

Contract liabilities
Advance from costomers

Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2023
5.69

74.71

As at
31 March 2022
10.01

41.25

Note: Considering the nature of business of the Company, the above contract liabilities are generally materialised as revenue and trade receivables is converted into cash within the same

operating cycle.
Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
- bank deposits 10.96 0.86
- on loan to helding company 223.09 7646
Net gain on fair valuation of equity component of convertible PIK obligation 57.10 14.40
Gain on modification of financial liabilities - 9.37
Provisionsdiabititics no longer required written back 5.73 -
[nterest on income tax refund 027 639
Miscellaneous income 0.98 0.26
298.13 1901.74
Cost of materials consumed For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Consumption of food and beverages
Inventory at the beginning of the year 455 4,76
Add : Purchases during the year 7744 31.83
Inventory at the end of the year (5.10) (4.55)
76,82 32.04
Employee benelits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bornus 87.03 51.01
Coninbution to provident fund and other fimds {refer ‘s’ below) 6.06 364
Compensated absences {refer ‘b’ below) 198 0.78
Ciratuity expense (refer 'c' below) a.20 0.20
Staff welfare expenses 9.29 7.13
104.56 62.76

2. Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, m respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees'
State [nsurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has po obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are ¢harged fo profit or loss as they
accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employzes' State Insurance for the year aggregated to TNR 6,06 (31 March 2022 -

[HR. 3.64) Also, refer Mote 34,

b. Compensated absences
The principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below;
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% Yo
Discounting rale p.a, 7.04 4 87
5.50 5,50

Salary growih rate p.a.
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c. Delined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each

completed year of service. The scheme is nol funded.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefir expense recognized in profit or loss and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the said plan:

a) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Particalars
Current service cost

Interest cost
Total included in 'Employee benefits expense’

b) R ts recognised direcily in other comprehensive income

Particulars

Met actuanial {gain¥loss recognized in the year from:
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumphions
- changes in experience adjustments
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

&) Change in present valoe of benefit obligation

Particulars

Present value of obligation as at the beginming of the year
Current service cost

[nterest cost

Remeasurements of defined benefit liability/asset (net of tax)
Benefits paid

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

dy A Is to be recognised in Balance Sheer
Particulars
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

Funded status
Met Giabiliey recognised in the Balance Sheet

Mon-cuwrrent
Current

e) The principal assumptions used in determining the gratuity benefit obligation are as given below:

Particulars

Economic assumptions
Discounting rate p.a. (i}

Salary growth rate p.a. {ii}

(i) The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields avaitable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a ferm that matches that of the liabilities.
(i1} The salary growth rate takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis.

Demographic assumpiions

Retirement age (years)
Withdrawal Rate
Apes

Up to 30 years

From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years
Moctality rate

1) The Company's best estimate of expense for the nexl yvear ss INR .22 (31 March 2022; INR. 0.29).

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
017 0.16
0.04 0.04
0,20 .20
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(0.03) (0.01}
0.02 0.20
{0.01) 019
For the year ended For the vear ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.74 0.94
017 0.16
0.04 0.04
(0.01) 019
(0.40) (0.59}
.54 0.74
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.54 0.74
0.54 0.74
0.39 049
015 0.25
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %
7.04 487
5.50 5.50
As at As ab
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
58 58
% %Yo
61 61
61 61
6l 6l

L34 Indian assured lives

mortality {2012 - 14)

T

100%; Indian assured lives

mortality (2012 - 14)
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g) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuartal assumptions, hotding other assumptions constant, would have affacted the defined benefit obligation by the
amounts shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Increase * Decrease * Increase * Decrease *
Dhscount rate {0.5% movement) (0.01) 0.01 (0.01) 0.01
0.0[ {0.01) 0.01 {0.01)

Future salary growth (0. 5% movernent)

Although the znalysis does not take aceount of the full disinbution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approxitnation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

* Positive amount represents increase in provision
* Negative amount represents decrease in provision

Sensitivity changes due to withdrawal and mortality are not material and hence not disclosed,
There was no change in the method and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

As at
Year 31 March 2023
April 2023 - March 2024 a.1s
April 20249 - March 2025 0.15
April 2025 - March 2026 on7
April 2026 - March 2027 003
April 2027 - March 2028 0oL
Aprl 2028 - March 2029 o.M
April 2029 onwards 012
.54
As at
Year 31 March 2022
Apnl 2022 - March 2023 025
Apal 2023 - March 2024 030
April 2024 - March 2025 .12
April 2025 - March 2026 0.04
April 2026 - March 2027 o.M
Apri] 2027 - March 2028 0.01
0.01

April 2028 orwards
0.74
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31

32

33A

e

Finance costs

[ expense on fi al liabilities carried at amortized cost

e sk

- Mon
- Lazms from bank and financial institution
- Others

Interest expense on delay in deposit of statutory dues

Other finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Building

- Machinery

- Onhers

Advertisement and business promolion
Commission
Communication
Consumption of stores and supplies
Conimaciual labour

General administration expenses
[ngurames

Legal and professional fees

Loss on foreign exchange Auchuation (net)
Manapement and incentive fees
Government grant wrinen off
Payment to auditors*
Power, fuel and water

Loss allowance for trade receivables
Rates and taxes
Training expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

*Payment to auditors

Statutory audit
Reimbursement of expenses

Earnings/{(boss) per share (EPS)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,526.21 173.15
43.10 308.87
6.29 148
1.56 7.48
7.54 29.35
1,584.70 520,33
Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
106,24 105,85
1.07 0.40
167,31 106,25
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
10.48 541
16.23 1116
6.94 295
41,36 7.46
5138 .85
378 298
31.62 18,35
24.46 6.81
637 238
203 221
119.27 93.81
10.15 2.18
71877 9.12
- 146
1.84 .84
50.03 3177
4,30 0.14
2395 23.35
1.80 070
26,60 6.51
8.37 6.98
£20.23 247,99
1.75 1.80
0.09 0.04
1,84 134

Basic EPS is calculared by dividing the loss for the year attributable 1o equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the Joss for the year atribucable to the equity sh
number of equity shares thar would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

" I el

Met loss atmi I equity sh

Weighted average numnber of equity shares outstanding during the year for ealculation of basic EPS
Weighted averape number of equity shares ontstanding during the year for calculation of diluted EPS

Mominal value of equity share ([NE)
Basic eamingsf(losses) per share (INR)
Diluted eamings/ilosses) per share {INR}

of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average

Far the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(B93.16) (583.65)

124,780,000 124,780,000

124,780,000 124,780,000

10,06 10.00
(7.16) (4.68)
(7.16) (4.68)
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34 Contingent liabilities and commitments

35

(o the extent not provided for)
As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and others, and not provided for

Contingent liabilities

a, In February 2019, Supreme Court of India in its judgement clarified the applicability of allowances that should be considered to measure obligations under The
Employees’ Provident Funds And Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952, The Company has been legally advised that there are interpretative challenges on the
application of judgement retrospectively and as such does not consider there is any probable obligations for past periods.

b. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had received a notice under Section 148 of the [ncome-tax Act, 1961 for assessment year 2016-17 on
grounds of escaped assessment. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has received favourable order in respect of this notice.

¢. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had received a notice under Chapter V of the Finance Act, 1994 for the period 2014-15 to 2017-18 (upto
June 2017} on grounds of excess availment of CENVAT credit and short payment of service tax involving an amount of INR 8%.30 along with interest under
Section 75 of the Finance Act, 1994 along with equal penalty under Rule 15 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 and Section 78 of the Finance Act, 1994. The
Company has fited a written submission denying all atlegations made in the notice before the Commissioner of Goods & Services Tax (Appeals) which is pending
for disposal. The management is of the view that based on the merits of the arguments put forward and facts of this case, the outcome is likely to be in the favour of

the Company and no provision is required to be created in the books.

Operating Segments

The Holding Company’s Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODMY), since he is responsible for afl major
decisions w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance, merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility.
CODM has examined the Company's performance from product and geographic perspective and has idenfified a single business segment i.e. "Developing and
running of hotels”, hence no specific disclosures have been made.

a) Information about products and services
The Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

b) Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further, there are no assets located outside India.

¢) Information about major customers {from external customers)
The Company does not derive revenue from one customer which would amount to 1¢ per cent or more of the Company’s revenue.
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36 Relaved party disclosures

a) Related party and nature of related party relationship where confrol exists:

Mature

Mame of related party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

b) Related parties with whem transactions have taken place during the current year and previous year:

Description of relationship

Mame of related party

Holding Company SAMHI Hotels Limited

Fellow Subsidianes

CASPLA Hotels Private Limited

Arpon Hotels Private Limited

SAMHI Hotels ( Ahmeadabad) Private Limiled

Barque Hotels Private Limited

¢} Related party transactions during the current year/previous year:

Particolars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries
31 March 2023 31 Marech 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Legal and professional fees
SAMH] Hotels Limited %3.73 7747 - -
Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost
SAMHI Hotels Limited 223.09 76.46 - -
Loan te holding company
SAMHI Hotels Limited - %0354 - -
Repayment of lean by holding company
SAMHI Hotels Limited - 6.50 -
Advance received
SAMHI Hotels Limited - £50.00 - -
Advance repaid
SAMHI Hotels Limited - 848.50 - =
Gain on early repayment of loan by holding company
SAMH] Hotels Limited - 4.14 - -
Reimb t of exp {neth
SAMHI Hotels Limited 4.94 299 - -
CASPLA Hotels Prvate Limited - - 115 4.23
SAMH] Hotels { Alunedabad) Private Limited - - 211 4.59
Argon Holels Private Limited - - .82 4.66
Initial recog of equity component of convertible PIK obligation
SaMHI Hotels Limited - 877.70 - -
Net gain on fair val of equity p t of convertible PIK obligat
SAMHI Hotels Limited 57.10 14.40 - -
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d) Related party balances as at year end

Particulars Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables
SAMH] Hotels Limited 8536 97.02 -
Loan to holding iy at amortised cost
SAMHI Hotels Limited 1.460.09 1.317.88 - -
Capital reserve
SAMHI Hotels Limited 3244 32.44 - -
Concessional interest component of loan to holding ¢
SAMHI Hotels Limited 610,54 G10.54 =
Equity component of convertible FIK obligation
SAMHEI Hotels Limited 806.20 863.30 - -
Qther receivables
SAMHI Hotels Limited 0.52 0.61 - -
SAMHI Hotels {Ahmedabad) Private Limited - - 0.36 047
CASPILA Hotels Private Limited - 0.53 0.71
Argon Hotels Private Limited - - 10 3.68
Note:
(i} Refer Note 19 and Note 22 for the securities/ guarantees provided/ received by the Company on behalf of its related entities for loans obtained from bank and financial institutions.
{if) The Company has provided securities during the year on the behalf' of following fellow subsidiaries:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

- Barque Hotels Privale Limited 3.152.00 2,850.00

1,333.00 -

— Argon Hotels Private Limited

{Represents the limits santioned by bank and financial institutions to fellow subsidiaries

on account of the security given by the Company)

(iii) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivaient to Those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and within the ordinary course of business. Quistanding balances at the
year-end are unsecured and outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash,

{iv) For the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is

undertaken at each reporting period.
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37 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk mamagement

A) Financisl instruments by ¢aiegory and fair value

4,

The below table izes the judg and esti made in d ining the fair values of the financial instruments thal are {a) recognized
and measured 2t [air value and (b) measured al amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financral siaterments. To provide an
indication aboul the reliability of the inputs used in delermining Fair value. The Company has classified its financial instrumenis into the ihree levels

p ibed under the ting standard
Particulars As af 31 March 2023
Level ol Fair Value | Fair Volue Through | Ameortised Cost
hierarchy Through Profit Other

and Loss Comprehensive

(FVYTPL) lacome (FYTOCI)
Financial assels
Mon-curent financiail asseis - Loans 2 - - 1460 08
Mon-curmrent financial assels - Others - - 42 97
Current [tnancial assets - Trade recenvables - . 1471
Current financial assers - Cash and cash equivalents - - 5079
Current financial assets - Others - 5538
Total financial assets - - 1.683.94
Financial lishilities
Mon-current financial lizhilities - Borowings 2 - - 3.747 97
Current financial liabilities - Borrowinus 2 < = 534 83
Current financial lizbilities - Trade pavables - - 22317
Current financial Jiabitities - Others - - 1103
Total Minancial liabilities - - 4.517.00
Particulars As al 31 March 2022

Lavel of Fair Value | Fair Value Through | Amortised Cost
hierarchy Through Profit Orther

and Loss Comprehensive

(F¥TPL) Income (FVTOCI)
Finansial assets
Hon-current financial assets - Loans 2 - - 131788
Mon-current financial assets - Others - - 14,84
Curmrent financial assets - Trade receivables - - d1.25
Current financeal assets - Cach and cash equivalents - - 124 27
Current financigl assels - Bank balances other than cash and - - 292
cash eauivalents ahove
Current financial assets - Others - - 605
Total finsncial assels - - 1.507.21
Financinl linbilities
MNon-coment financial liabilities - Borrowines 2 - - 3,264 31
Non-current financial liabilities - Trade pavables - - 2885
HNon current financial habiiies - Others - - 068
Current financial liabilities - Trade pavables - 18217
Cument financial liabilities - Others - - 1258
Total financial liabilities - - 1.438.59

As al As at

Financial assets and lighilities measured at amortised cost - Fair vatue measurc

Nom-current financial assets
Lcans i Interest free loan} (Level 2) *

* Represents farr value of Joan to holding company.

31 March 2023

411,34

31 March 2022

37892

Significant unobservable inputs used by the company 1o determine fair value of loans (Interest free loan) is discount rate (31 March 2023 12.15%

p.e and 31 March 2022: T1 7% pa).

The fair value of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, cument borrowings, cument trade
payables and other current financial liabilities approximale their carrying amounts, due o their short-term nature.

Interes! rates on non-current borrowings (bormowings from bank and fi

) are equi

floating rates which are reset at shont intenvals Accordingly, the camying value of such borrowings spproximales fair value

Fair valuation of other t i

there is no significan! difference benween carrying value and fair value
Fair value of bank deposits (included in oiler non-current financial assets) and loan to holding company (interesl bearing loan} are equivalent to
their camrying amount, as the interest rate on them is equivalent 1o market rate

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigue used to value financial instruments include:
lated based on cash flows discounted wsing current lending rate

- the fair value of loan 10 holding company (i free loan) is

B) Measwrement of fair values

to the markel rate. Such borrowings are at

ial assels and Habilities and non-current trade payables has been disclosed to be same as camying value as

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valualion iechnigues as follows:

d) in active

rkets for i

Level 1: quoled prices (

| assets or Liabilities

Level 2: inputs gther than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either direcily (i, as prices) or indirectly

{i.e. derived from prices)

Lewvel 3: inputs for the assets or Dability that are not based on observable markel dala (unchservable inputs).

There are no transfer between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year
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C) Financial rish managemeni

Risk management framework

The Company’s aclivities expose il 1o 2 variety of financial risks; market risk {including loreign exchange risk and inlerest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

The

[ risk licies across the Comp

The Holding Company’s Chief Financial (fficer under the directions of the Board of Di

policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to sel appropnate rigk limits and
d regularly 10 reflect changes in markel conditions and the Company®s activilies

impacl of such risks The risk tp and are revi
i. Credit risk
Credit risk is the rick of financial loss 1o the Company if a ar e tytoafi

trols, 10 nsksand db

the maximum credit risk exposure, The Company has eredit policies in place and the sxposures to these credit risks are monitored on an sngoing basis

Te caler 1o the credit risk for balances wilh banks, only high rated banks are gecepied

to G dep and 1
The C

The Company has given security dep
receivable balance outstanding as al year end from its holds

from rade ivables, the Camp

In respect of credit

for securing services from them and rental deposils for
does not expect any default from these parties and aocordmgly lhe risk of default is regligible or nil

y has policies in place to ¢énsure that sales on credit without

ol dati,

| are made pri

with an appropriate credit history. Sales to olber customers are made in cash or by debit or credit cards or other payment plalforms

The C v establishes an

for impairment that represents ils expected credit losses in respect of trade receivablez. The

pany’s nisk
10 limits in order to minimize the financial

| instrument fzils 10 meet ils contractual obhigations. The camying amount of financial assels represent

The Company has loan

pally to iravel agents and corporate ¢ormnpanies

h for the purpose of

uses a pp

Tudi hath

computation of expected credil loss for trade receivables. In monitoning customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credil ch istics, 14

fi ial dilficullies, if any.

or legal entity, their geographical location, indusiry and exist ofp

Druring Lhe year, the Company has made no write-of% of trade receivables.

Reconciliation of loss allowamce provision

Opening balance
Changes in loss allowance

Closing balance

for f ial assets discl

The i

ii. Liquidity risk

For the year ended
31 March 2023

they are an individual

For the year ended

31 March 2022

1.35 121
480 O14
6.15 1.35

i d above are based on assumptions about risk of defaull and expecied loss rales. The Company uses judgement in making these assumphions
and seleclmg the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, existing markel conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period

The Company’s approach of managing liquidiry is t0 ensure, as far as possible, that it wilk have suFficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions

blished an appropriale lig

i,

fr ork for the 2

of the

¥ risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Di , which has
Company’s shor-term, medium term and long-term funding and liquidity qui

(8} Exposure to liguidity risk
The following are the ining [ of i 1al liabitities at the reporting date. The amounis are gross and undiscounted and excluding fiture | interest f it
Contractual cash Bows {(INR)

As a1 31 March 2023 Carrying amount Total 01 year 1-2 years -5 years More than § years
Non-derivative financial linbilities
Non-current borrowings 3,7147.97 3,796.96 . 7Li0 $14.80 321106
Current borrowings 534 83 534.83 53483 E = -
Current trade pavables 22317 22477 22477 - - -
Other curmrent financial lizbilities 1103 11.03 1003 - - -

4.517.04 4.567.59 71063 iRl 514.80 3.211.06

Contractugl cash flows {INR)

As a1 31 March 2022 Carrying amount Total 0-1 yenr 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
Neon-derivative financial liabilities
Neon-currént borrowings 326431 4,250.52 - - 4,250 52 -
Non-current Trade payables 28 85 443 . 363 - .
Other non-current financial liabilities 068 068 - 068 - =
Currenl trade payables 18217 184 27 184 27 - - -
Other current financial liabilities 12.58 1258 12 58 - - -

3.486.59 4,482.68 196.85 3531 4,250.52 -
Also, refer Note 41 for discl on poing phicn
(b) Financing arrangement(s
The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

As at As al

Floating rate
Expiring within one year (bank overdrafi and other facilities)

31 March 2023

3156

31 March 2022

31.56
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i, Marke) risk
The Company is exposcd to marked righ peimanily rdatimg 1o the sk of changes in marko prices, such as formgn exchange rates and interest mics, tat will 2fer the Company’s expense or the value of is

holdings of firancial instruments

Currsney risk

The Company’s exposurc o forcign currency Hisk is on aceount of payables for management focs and ollver cxpenditure in currencics other than the functional surmeney of the Company

Exposore 1o eurrency cisk

The Company's exposure 1o forcign currency nisk ot the ond of the reporiing poriod ar a5 fllows:

31 March 2023 Currency Amount in foreipn Amiounl
currency INR in millions
{in millions}
Financial Enbilicies
Trade pavabhes Usp 043 3503
Currency Amgunl in foreign Amount

31 March 2022
CUFFENCY INE, in milions

{in millions)

Financlal liabilities

Trad: pavables UsD L8l 6116
Sensifivity analysts
A bh possible pihoning (weakening} of the Indian Rupie against foreign surmency al year end would have affecied the of financial i d inated in foreign currency and

affuered equity and profit or boss by e amounts shown bolow. This analysis assumes thar all other voriables. in particular inlerest mites, Temain eonstant and itmores any impacl of forecast sales and purchases,

(Profinfloss Equity, net of tax (imcreaselfdecrease
Efect in INR Steengthening PR Strengthening Wesh
31 March 2022
USD (1% mevement} 035 {0.35) 0.35 {035y
0.35 0.35) 0.35 (0.35)
iProfity¥loss Equity, net of tax (increaseMdecrease
Effect in INR heni Wealeni < hent T
31 March 2022
USD [ 1% maovement) 6l (R3] .61 (X3N]
.61 .51 0,61 w0.61)
Interest rate risk
Interest rat sk is the rigk that the fir valoe of fare cash flows of a financial i will 1 because of chanpes in market iverest rics. The Company™s exposure to the risk of changes i market

interest rites relates pamanly to tve Company’'s bomowings with flaatng intercst rates

The Company evaluates the interest rates in the morker on 2 regular basis to explor: the aption of refinancing of the bormowings of the Compam . Maercaver, a5 at 31 March 2022, the Company's bomowings are
linked 1o flozting interest rates, terey resulting in the adjustments of its borrgwing costs in liog with the nrarket nicresy,

Exposare to interest raie risk

The inderest rate profike of the Company s ini bearing financial i 15 as follows:

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2032
Fixed-rale imstruments
Mon-curtent financial ggscre - Loans {Refer Mote 53 L4660 02 131798
Financial asscls - bank deposits 8699 10¢l
Financial liabiliics - ibde deb {Refer Note 193 = 5,264 51
Variabke-rate instiruments
Financial habilities - Cash credit and overdrafl facilitics from bank 3719 -
Financial habilitics - Term lcans from bank 270825 -
Financial liabiliics - Term loans from financial melitulicn 1.200.94 -
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company dovs not account for any fised-rate financial assels or financial habilities at fair vatue Grough profit and loss. Thercfore, 3 change in inberesl ratee at the reporting date would not affect profit or

loss. Alse. refer Mote 37A for fair value disclosare

Cash Mlow sensifivity analysis foc variable-rate instruments

A wasenably possible change of 100 basis points in intcrest rates at the reporting dale would have increasediidecrased) cquity and profit or loss by the amaunts shown below. This analysis assumes that 3l
other variables. remain constant

(Pradit} f Joss. Eaquity, net of tax
lincrease) / decrease
100 bps increase 10 bps decrease 100 bps increase 100 bps decrease
31 March 2023
Financial linbilitics 30 3 93) 3.92 13823
Cash Nlow sensitivity (net} 392 [3.92) 392 13.92}

M Capital Management

The Companys palicy is lo mainlain a strong capital base 50 as [o maintain investor. areditor and markel canfidence and Lo sustain future development of Hic business

The Board of Directors of the Company secks 10 maintain a balance between the lighee rebums that might be possible with higher levels of bomowing and the advamapss and seeurity afforded by a sound
capilal pogition

The Company monnors capital using loan to valoe (LTV) mciliod 10 cnsun; that il boan to value docs nol imercase beyond 65% on any given reporing date at group level

The Company is not subject 16 oxitrmally impased capital requiremmis

As 3 pan of its capital manageownt palicy. the Company did not have any continuing defanlts in the repanment of loans and infercst. There bave been e material loan sovenant defaulls and there has been no
mitimation from the banks finaneial institution for recallng any lean Facilny
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39

40

41

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Dues to micro, small and medium suppliers

The amounts ramaining unpaid to micre and small suppliers as at the end of the year. .

Principal amowunt 1544 0.52
Interest therson 1.41 ol

The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006 {MSMED Act, 2006)
The amounts of the payments made to micre and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but withour adding the interest specified under MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the pupose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of

the MSMED Act 2006.

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterpeises, as defined under
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {(MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable ta such enterprises as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March

2022 has been mads in the Bnancial s1atements based on information received and available with the Company.

During the current year, SAMHI Hotels Limited (the holding company) has allocated expenses amounting to INR 83.73 (31 March 2022 - INR 77.47} as Company’s share of project expenses
and other cost incucred.

Going concern

The Company has a negative net worth of INR 558.64 and has incwred a net loss of INR §93.15 during the year ended 31 March 2023, As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s current liabilities
exceed its current assets by INR 575.82. Further, the Company has contractual cash outflows of INR 770.63 (excluding future contractual interest payments) dug within 12 month of the balance

sheet date,

In the current year, consequent to reduction in the number of COVID-19 cases and easiug of all travel restrictions, the Company has witnessed a strong recovery. Starting from Q1 FY 2023, the
Company has demonstrated improved business performance in terms of Average Room Revenue {ARR} and Occupancy levels. ARR and Occupancy levels in FY 2022-23 and Q1 FY 2023-24
have reached INR 10,100 and 73% and [NR 11,259 and 72% respectively. The Company has projected a significant increase in its cash flow from operations ducing the years ending 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2025. The Cormpany has cash and bank balance of INR 100.79 {excluding restricted bank deposits} and undrawn credit facilities of INR. 31.56 as on 31 March 2023 which
will assist for meeting its short-term liabilities for next 12 months. However, if a liquidity need were to arise, the Company believes it has access 10 requisite financial and operationzl support

from SAMHI Hotels Limited (holding company), which will enable it to meet its ongoing capital, operating and other liquidity requirements.

In view of the above, the management and the Board of Directors believe that the Campany will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in near
future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.




SAMH]1 JV Business Hotels Private Limited

CIN USS101DL2011PTC214129

Notes lo the financial stafements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Rupees millions. unless otherwise siated)

42  New stundards and interpretations, not yet adopted

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Comp (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 31
March 2023, MCA amended the Comparnies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1 Apnl 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after | April 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant

in the Company’s Gnancizl statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: This amendment has introduced a definilion of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendmenis to Ind AS 8
to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is anmual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: This amendment has narrewed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting termporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its

financia! statements.

Ratios as required by Schedule I to the Companies Aet, 2013:

Ratio In times/% MNumerator Denominator 31 March 2023 |31 March 2022 Increase/ decrease %
Curren? Ratio In times Total current assets Total current liabililies 03 1.0 -11%
Debt-Equity Ratio [n limes Total Borrowings Tolal equity (1.7 83 -192%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio  |In times Eamings before finance  cost,|Interest Payments + Principal 1.1 01 1755%
depreciation and amortisation and|Repayments
tax
Retum on Equity Ratio In % Loss for the vear Average Total equity NA NA NA
Inventory lumover ratio in times Cast of goads sold Average [nventory NA NA N&
Trade Receivables turmover ratio |In limes Revenue from operations Average Trade Receivables 20.7 11.5 80%
Trade payables turnover ratio In times Cost of materials consumed + Other| Average Trade Payables 28 L7 64%
Met capital hamover ratio In times Re'venue from operations Average Cument assets - 4.1) 27 3%
Average Current lizbilities
Net profit ratio In % Loss for the year Revenue from operations -14% -206%| -64%
Retura on Capital employed In% Loss before finance costs and taxes |Tangible Net Worth + Total MNA NA NA
Borrowings
Retum on in In % Interest (Finance Income) | t NA| NA NA
Explanations to variance in Ratios:
Current Ratio Lower due to increase in current borrowings and trade pavables and decrease in cash and bank balances.
Debt-Equity Ratio Lower due to decrease in ather equity
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Improved due 1o increase in earings before Bnance cost. depreciation and amortisation and 1ax
Trade Receivables humaver ratio | Increased in trade receivables turnover ratio is due 19 decrease in credit sales during the ysar.
Trade pavables tumover ralie Incraased due to increase in business activity during the vear.
Net capital tumover ratio Decreased due to decrease in average working capital duning the vear
Net profit ratio Improved due to improvement in business activity during the vear
The Company has aot p d the following ratios due to the reasons given below:

(a) Inventory tumover ratio: Since the value of inventory is insignificant as compared to the total assels

(b) Return on investments: Since the Company invests surplus temporary funds in short term bank deposits and the income generated is insignificant 1o lotal tumover.
(¢) The Company has incurred net loss in current year as well as previous year and also has negative Equity/ Capital Employed, Therefore, "Return on equity” and
"Return on capital employed” ratio cannot be meaningfully computed and hence have not been disclosed in the financial statements
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Other statutory information
v for lolding any Bepami property.

{i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending agatnst the Comp
(ii} The Company do not have any ransactions with companies struck off.
(iii) The Company doss not have any charges or satisfaction which is ye1 to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
{¥) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Benefictaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
{vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mamner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{vii) The Comnpany has not entered any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been swrendered or diselesed as income durmg the year in the tax assessments
under the [ncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
(viii} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institation or govemment or any government authority
(ix) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) sither severally or
jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment,
(x) The Company has used the borrowings from bank and financial institution for the specific purpose for which it was taken.
(xf) The Company has complied with number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013
(xii} The Company has not ¢ntered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.
{xiii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during current or previous year.
(xiv) The Company is not required o submit quarterly retums or statements with banks during the corrent or previous year.
(xv) The title deeds of immovable property disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. However, ariginal title deeds are under lien with lender.

The Company has foreign currency payables of TNR. 11.28 towards management & license fee and incentives ato. which are outstanding for more than three years as on 31 March 2023, As per
Foreign Exchanpe Management Act, 1999 and the applicable rulesfregulations, in case of any foreign cumency dues which are not remitted within a period of three years, approval from Reserve
Bank of India {RBI) is required. In view of the management, the Company was unable to clear these dues within the time stipulated under law due to financial difficulties encountered by the
Hotel industry on account of COVID-19, Subsequent to March 2022, the Hotel industry has witnessed significant improvement in its cash flows and the Company has settled some of these dues
and intends to settle the balance dues in the near futuce. Based on legal advice obtained, the Company is of the view that it will be in a position o get the necessary approvals from RBI
Authonsed Dealer { AD) banker, if any, and will not result in imposition of any penalty which will be material to these financial statements.

As per the MCA Notification daled 06 August 2022, the Central Government has notified the Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022, As per the amended rules, the Company is
required to maintain a backup of the books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic mode that should be accessible in India at all the time. Abso, the Company is required to

create backup of accounts on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

The bocks of account along with other relevant records and papers of the Company is maintained in electronic mode in both hotels. These are readily accessible in India at all times and currently
a backup is maintained on a cloud based / physical server. Such servers ave located in India, with the exception of certain softwares/ applications, for which the servers are located overseas. The

Company is in the process of complying with these requirement pursuant ¢o the amendment.
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Impairment of assets

Tmpairment tessing for cash-generating units

In accordance with Ind AS 36 "Impairment of Assets”, the Company had identified imdividval hotels (consisting of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) as a separate cash
generating unit (CGU) for the purpose of impairment review. Management periodically assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired using a comparison between
carrying value of assets in baoks and the recoverable value. Recoverable value is considered as higher of fair valve less costs of disposal and value in use.

Recoverable amount is value in use of the hotel and is based on discounted cash flow method which was classified as a Jevel 3 fair value in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of one or
more unobservable inputs. There has been no change in the valuation technique as compared o previous years.

During the current year, based on the impairment analysis carried out by the management, no impairment loss is required to be recorded in the financial statemenis

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out below

Assumptions
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate Pre tax / Post Tax 12.34%./ 12.15% 12.22% 7 11.70%
Average Room Revenue {ARR) growth rate e to 12% 8% to 17%
Terminal Value multiple 14 times 14 times
Qccupancy rate 79% 75% - B0%

Based oo the impairment testing performed, 1he management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount to be lower than
carrying amownt of the CGU,

The notes from Note 1 to Note 47 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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